
CITY OF CANYON LAKE 
City Hall 

31516 Railroad Canyon Road 
Canyon Lake, CA 92587 
www.canyonlakeca.gov   

 
 

Mayor Kasey Castillo  
Mayor Pro Tem Jeremy Smith 

 

Council Member Jennifer Dain 
Council Member Larry Greene 

Council Member Dale Welty 
 

City Manager Chris Mann 
City Attorney Steven Graham 

City Clerk Ana V. Sauseda, CMC 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting of the Canyon Lake City Council 
Wednesday, July 7, 2021 

 

Closed Session 5:00 P.M. – City Hall Administration Office – 31526 Railroad Canyon Road, Suite 5 
Open Session 6:30 P.M. – City Hall Council Chamber – 31516 Railroad Canyon Road 

 
SPECIAL NOTICE – COVID-19 RELATED PROCEDURES IN EFFECT 

 
Pursuant to Paragraph 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, executed by the Governor of California on March 
17, 2020, as a response to mitigating the spread of Coronavirus (COVID-19), this regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Canyon Lake will allow Councilmembers to attend the City Council meeting 
telephonically from remote locations without requiring notice of or public access to those locations.  The 
City Council Chamber will be open to the public. Alternatively, members of the public may observe the City 
Council meeting by selecting the Live Stream icon on the main page: www.canyonlakeca.gov, the City’s 
Facebook page, Time Warner/Spectrum Channel 29, or on FIOS/Frontier Channel 39. 
 
In a further effort to allow for social distancing, members of the public may comment electronically by 
sending an email with their comment to PublicComment@canyonlakeca.gov.  
 
If any member of the public has a disability and desires to request a modification or accommodation of the 
above procedures, please contact the City Clerk at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at 951-244-8547 or 
by email at asauseda@canyonlakeca.gov. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

CLOSED SESSION – 5:00 P.M. 
 

CLOSED SESSION CALLED TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL   
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
PUBLIC COMMENT            LIMIT 3 MINUTES  

 

Any person wishing to address the City Council on any matter within the jurisdiction of the City, whether or not it appears on this 
agenda, is asked to complete a “Speaker Request Form” available on the back counter.  The completed form is to be submitted 
to the City Clerk prior to an individual being heard by the City Council.  The City Council has adopted a time limitation of three 
(3) minutes per person. If you are commenting on the agenda item, your comments will be heard at the time that particular item 
is scheduled on the agenda.  Please note that if you are addressing the City Council on items NOT on the agenda, the Brown 

 

 

07/07/2021 City Council Agenda

http://www.canyonlakeca.gov/
http://www.canyonlakeca.gov/
mailto:PublicComment@canyonlakeca.gov
mailto:asauseda@canyonlakeca.gov


Act does not allow discussion of such items.  Therefore, the City Council may only do the following: refer the matter to staff, ask 
for additional information or request a report back, or give a very limited factual response.   
 

Members of the public may still submit their comment electronically by sending an email with their comment to 
PublicComment@canyonlakeca.gov. Comments submitted electronically will be provide to the City Council and included in the 
official record but will not be read aloud during the meeting. 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – INITIATION OF LITIGATION – Pursuant to paragraph (4) 

of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 –  1 case 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS - Pursuant to Section 54956.8 
Property: APN 349-290-008 
Agency Negotiator: City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: Jim Kipp 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment  
 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – Pursuant to paragraph (1) of 
subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9  
Richard Beck v. City of Canyon Lake, Riverside Superior Court Case No.: RIC2003025 
 

D. CLOSED SESSION WITH LEGAL COUNSEL PURSUANT TO GOVT. CODE SECTION 54956.9 
(d)(1) - City of Canyon Lake, et al. v. Nancy Athey, et al. Riverside Superior Court Case No. 
RIC1812338 
 

E. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION - Significant exposure to 
litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 - 1 case 
 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

OPEN SESSION - 6:30 P.M. 
 

OPEN SESSION CALLED TO ORDER 
INVOCATION     
FLAG SALUTE  
ROLL CALL  
CLOSED SESSION REPORT 
APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
CEREMONIAL MATTERS Presentations, Awards, Proclamations 

• Citizen of the Month – Canyon Lake Little League 
• Canyon Lake Scholarship – Sam Bock 
• Presentation by the City Clerk 

 

COMMUNITY REPORTS - LIMIT 3 MINUTES 
• Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District Update – Vice President Darcy Burke 
• Canyon Lake Property Owners Association Update – President Joe Kamashian 
• Chamber of Commerce Update – President Jeanne O’Dell 

 

07/07/2021 City Council Agenda

mailto:PublicComment@canyonlakeca.gov


 
PUBLIC SAFETY UPDATE 
 Sheriff’s Department  
 Fire Department 
 Code Enforcement 

     ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
PUBLIC COMMENT          LIMIT 3 MINUTES           
 

Any person wishing to address the City Council on any matter within the jurisdiction of the City, whether or not it appears on this 
agenda, is asked to complete a “Speaker Request Form” available on the back counter.  The completed form is to be submitted 
to the City Clerk prior to an individual being heard by the City Council.  The City Council has adopted a time limitation of three 
(3) minutes per person. If you are commenting on the agenda item, your comments will be heard at the time that particular item 
is scheduled on the agenda.  Please note that if you are addressing the City Council on items NOT on the agenda, the Brown 
Act does not allow discussion of such items.  Therefore, the City Council may only do the following: refer the matter to staff, ask 
for additional information or request a report back, or give a very limited factual response.   
 
Members of the public may still submit their comment electronically by sending an email with their comment to 
PublicComment@canyonlakeca.gov. Comments submitted electronically will be provide to the City Council and included in the 
official record but will not be read aloud during the meeting. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
CONSENT CALENDAR   
All items listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine matters, status reports or documents covering previous City 
Council action.  The items listed on the Consent Calendar may be enacted in one motion. With the concurrence of the City 
Council, a Council Member may request that an item be removed for further discussion. Staff recommends approval of all items. 

 

(1) Waive Full Reading, Read all Ordinances by Title Only 
 

(2) Resolution - Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-33, Approving Claims and Demands of the City  
 

(3) Minutes - Approval of City Council Minutes 
• June 2, 2021 – Regular City Council Meeting 

 
PULLED CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

 
BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

(4) Agreement - Law Enforcement Services with the County of Riverside 
 

(5) Discussion - Possible Amendments to Canyon Lake Municipal Code Section 9.03.030, Pertaining 
to the Prohibition of Commercial Cannabis 
 

(6) Ordinance - Adoption of Urgency Ordinance No. 208, Amending Chapter 3.44 of the Canyon 
Lake Municipal Code Related to the Emergency Medical Services Subscription Program and 
Emergency Medical Services Response Fee; and Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance 
No. 209, Amending Chapter 3.44 of the Canyon Lake Municipal Code Related to the Emergency 
Medical Services Subscription Program and Emergency Medical Services Response Fee 
 

(7) Resolution - Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-34, Authorizing a Budget Adjustment for the City’s 
Share of a Police Services Joint Powers Authority Feasibility Study   

07/07/2021 City Council Agenda

mailto:PublicComment@canyonlakeca.gov


(8) Designation of Voting Delegates - Designation of Voting Delegate and Alternates for the League 
of California Cities Annual Conference scheduled for September 22nd through 24th, 2021 

 
(9) Fire Department Startup Update - Presentation by Fire Consultant/Interim Fire Chief                

Jeff LaTendresse 
 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 
 
COMMITTEE AND COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMENTS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
The next regular meeting will be Wednesday, August 4, 2021, at 5:00 for Closed Session & 6:30 p.m. for 
Open Session  
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VISION STATEMENT 
 

The vision of the City of Canyon Lake is to be a City that provides a quality of life that makes Canyon Lake the 
premier place to live in Southern California. 
 

07/07/2021 City Council Agenda



ATTENTION RESIDENTS:  
 
Supporting documents, including staff reports, are available for review at City Hall in the City Clerk’s Office or on the 
City’s website at www.canyonlakeca.gov once the agenda has been publicly posted.  Any written materials relating 
to an item on this agenda submitted to the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office during normal business hours. In addition, such writings or documents will be 
made available for public review at the respective public meeting. It is the intention of the City of Canyon Lake to 
comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in all respects. If, as an attendee or participant at this meeting, 
you will need special assistance beyond what is normally provided, the City of Canyon Lake will attempt to 
accommodate you in every reasonable manner. Please contact Ana V. Sauseda, City Clerk, at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting to inform us of your particular needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible. Please advise us 
at that time if you will need accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis.  
 
 
July 7, 2021 City Council Meeting 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  } 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE }  SS.   AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
CITY OF CANYON LAKE } 
 
I, Ana V. Sauseda, being duly sworn, depose and say that I am the duly appointed and qualified City Clerk of the City 
of Canyon Lake and that on July 2, 2021 before the hour of 5:00 p.m., I caused the above notice to be posted as 
required by Resolution 2019-42 of the City Council of the City of Canyon Lake.  
 
Ana V. Sauseda, CMC 
City Clerk 

07/07/2021 City Council Agenda

http://www.canyonlakeca.gov/


07/07/2021 City Council Agenda



2

Page 107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 1007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 1107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 1207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 1307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 1407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 1507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 1607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 1707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 1807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 1907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 2007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 2107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 2207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 2307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 2407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 2507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 2607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 2707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 2807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 2907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 3007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 3107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 3207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 3307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 3407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 3507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 3607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 3707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 3807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 3907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 4007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 4107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 4207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 4307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 4407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 4507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 4607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 4707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 4807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 4907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 5007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 5107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 5207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 5307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 5407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 5507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 5607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



1 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

CANYON LAKE CITY COUNCIL 
Wednesday, June 2, 2021 

SPECIAL NOTICE – COVID-19 RELATED PROCEDURES IN EFFECT 

Pursuant to Paragraph 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, executed by the Governor of California on March 17, 2020, 
as a response to mitigating the spread of Coronavirus (COVID-19), this regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Canyon Lake will allow Councilmembers to attend the City Council meeting telephonically from remote 
locations without requiring notice of or public access to those locations.  The City Council Chamber will be closed 
to the public. Members of the public may observe the City Council meeting by selecting the Live Stream icon on 
the main page: www.canyonlakeca.gov, the City’s Facebook page, Time Warner/Spectrum Channel 29, or on 
FIOS/Frontier Channel 39. 

In a further effort to allow for social distancing, members of the public may comment electronically by sending an 
email with their comment to PublicComment@canyonlakeca.gov. The City Clerk will read these public comment 
submissions into the record during the “Public Comments” portion of the agenda. 

If any member of the public has a disability and desires to request a modification or accommodation of the above 
procedures, please contact the City Clerk at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at 951-244-8547 or by email at 
asauseda@canyonlakeca.gov. 

Closed Session – 4:30 p.m.  
City Hall Administration Building 

31526 Railroad Canyon Road, Suite 5 
Canyon Lake, CA 92587 

CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Castillo called the meeting to order at 4:31 p.m. 

CITY COUNCIL ROLL CALL 
Present: Councilmember Greene, Councilmember Welty, and Mayor Castillo 
Absent: 

Mayor Pro Tem Smith joined the meeting via telephone. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 

CLOSED SESSION 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL  – INITIATION OF LITIGATION –

Pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 –  1 case

ITEM 3

Page 5707/07/2021 City Council Agenda DRAFT

http://www.canyonlakeca.gov/
mailto:PublicComment@canyonlakeca.gov
mailto:asauseda@canyonlakeca.gov


2 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS - Pursuant to 
Section 54956.8 
Property: APN 349-290-008 
Agency Negotiator: City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: Jim Kipp 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment  
 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – 
Pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9  
Richard Beck v. City of Canyon Lake, Riverside Superior Court Case No.: 
RIC2003025 
 

D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – 
Pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9  
City of Canyon Lake, et al. v. Jensen, Riverside Superior Court Case No. 
CVRI2100821 
 

E. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION - 
Pursuant to Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9. 
Name of case: In Re Western Community Energy. Bankruptcy Court for the 
Central District of California Case No. 6:21-bk-12821 
 

F.   CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION - 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) 
of Section 54956.9 - 1 case 

 
The City Council entered Closed Session at 4:31 p.m. 
 

Open Session – 6:30 p.m.  
City Hall Council Chamber 

31516 Railroad Canyon Road 
Canyon Lake, CA 92587 

 
CALL OPEN SESSION TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Castillo called the meeting to order at 6:37 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Invocation was led by Vice President Darcy Burke. 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
Flag Salute was led by Travis Montgomery. 
 
 
 

Page 5807/07/2021 City Council Agenda DRAFT



3 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Councilmember Greene, Councilmember Welty, and Mayor Castillo 
Absent: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith joined the meeting via telephone. 
 
CLOSED SESSION REPORT 
 
Attorney Steven Graham stated that there were no items to report out of closed session. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  
 
Motion and second by Councilmembers Greene/Welty to approve the agenda. 
 
Motion carried 4-0, with Councilmember Greene, Mayor Pro Tem Smith, 
Councilmember Welty, and Mayor Castillo voting aye. 
 
CEREMONIAL MATTERS Presentations, Awards, Proclamations 
 

• Honoring Former Councilman Jordan Ehrenkranz 

The City was honored to have the following: 
• Assemblymember Kelly Seyarto joined to meeting via Zoom to present on behalf 

of himself and Senator Melissa Melendez 
• Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District Vice President Darcy Burke 
• Western Riverside Council of Governments Deputy Executive Director Chris 

Gray 
• Riverside County Sheriff’s Department Lieutenant James Rayls 
• Canyon Lake Property Owners Association Board President Joe Kamashian 

 
City Clerk Sauseda thanked the City of Menifee & CR&R for the beautiful flowers that 
they sent and also thanked the following for sending proclamations or certificates 
honoring Jordan: 

• Congressman Ken Calvert 
• County Supervisor Kevin Jeffries 
• City of Menifee 
• City of Corona 
• City of Eastvale 
• City of Perris 
• Riverside Transit Agency 

 
Mayor Castillo presented on behalf of the City of Canyon Lake. 
 
City Manager Mann announced the establishment of the “Jordan Ehrenkranz Spirit of 
Canyon Lake Award.” The perpetual plaque will be hung in City Hall forever and every 

Page 5907/07/2021 City Council Agenda DRAFT



4 
 

year, one recipient will be selected to receive the award at the State of the City event. 
The recipient will be someone who embodies the community spirit and gives selflessly of 
themselves to this community in the same way that Jordan did. 
 
Mayor Castillo called for a recess at 7:09 p.m. 
 
Mayor Castillo called for the meeting to reconvene at 7:17 p.m. 
 
COMMUNITY REPORTS  
 

• Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District Update  
Vice President Darcy Burke gave an update on behalf of Elsinore Valley Municipal Water 
District. 
 

• Canyon Lake Property Owners Association Update from President Joe Kamashian 
There were no updates. 
 

• Chamber of Commerce Update by President Jeanne O’Dell 
President O’Dell gave an update on behalf of the Chamber of Commerce and shared 
memories and kind words about former Councilman Ehrenkranz. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY UPDATE 
 

 Sheriff  
Lieutenant James Rayls gave an update on the statistics and answered questions from 
the Council. 
 

 Fire 
Representatives from Calfire were unavailable to attend the meeting. 
 

 Code Enforcement 
Ruby Manzano, Senior Code Enforcement Officer, gave an update on the statistics and 
answered questions from the Council.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

The following members of the public spoke: 
• John Zaitz 
• Jack Wamsley 

 
City Clerk Sauseda read emailed submissions from the following: 

• Barbara Leibold 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

(1) Waive Full Reading, Read all Ordinances by Title Only 
 

Page 6007/07/2021 City Council Agenda DRAFT



5 
 

(2) Resolution - Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-26, Approving Claims and 
Demands of the City  

 
(3) Minutes – Approval of City Council Minutes 

• May 5, 2021 – Regular City Council Meeting 
 

(4) Resolution – Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-27, Approving the North 
Gate Park Conceptual Plan and Directing the City Manager to Move 
Forward with Planning, Design and Land Acquisition 

 
(5) Resolution – Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-32, Declaring a Vacancy on 

the City Council and Setting the Schedule for an Appointment Process 
 

(6) Second Reading of Ordinance No. 207 – An Ordinance of the City Council 
of the City of Canyon Lake, California, to Update the Local Development 
Mitigation Fee for Funding the Preservation of Natural Ecosystems in 
accordance with the Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat 
Conservation Plan and LDMF Resolution 

 
(7) Committee Assignments – Review and Revise 2021 Agency and 

Committee Assignments 
 
Motion and second by Mayor Pro Tem Smith/ Councilmember Greene to approve 
the Consent Calendar. 
 
Motion carried 4-0, with Councilmember Greene, Mayor Pro Tem Smith, 
Councilmember Welty, and Mayor Castillo voting aye. 
 
PULLED CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
No items were pulled. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

(8) Resolution – Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-28, Establishing Solid Waste 
Collection Rates and EMS Program Fees for the 2021-2022 Fiscal Year and 
Providing for Collection Thereof on the Property Tax Roll 
 
• Public Hearing Opened 

Mayor Castillo opened the Public Hearing at 7:39 p.m. 
 

• Staff Presentation 
City Manager Mann presented the item. 
 

• Questions to Staff by City Council 
Alex Braicovich, Senior Vice President of CR&R Incorporated answered 
questions from the Council. 

Page 6107/07/2021 City Council Agenda DRAFT



6 
 

• Testimony by Proponents 
The following members of the public spoke: 

o John Zaitz 
 

• Testimony by Opponents 
The following members of the public spoke: 

o John Zaitz 
 

• Response by Proponents 
The following members of the public spoke: 

o Travis Montgomery 
 

• Public Hearing Closed 
Mayor Castillo closed the Public Hearing at 8:12 p.m. 
 

• Discussion by City Council 
Discussion ensued. 
 

• Tabulation of Written Protests by City Clerk 
Mayor Castillo asked the City Clerk to tabulate the protests for the Solid Waste 
Collection Rates and for the EMS Program Fees and inform the Council if a 
majority existed. 
 

City Clerk Sauseda deemed the protests valid and stated that a majority did not 
exist. She stated that 1 protest was received for the Solid Waste Collection 
Rates and 1 protest for the EMS Program Fees. 
 
• Action by City Council 

 
Motion and second by Councilmembers Greene/Welty to adopt Resolution No. 
2021-28. 
 
Motion carried 4-0, with Councilmember Greene, Mayor Pro Tem Smith, 
Councilmember Welty, and Mayor Castillo voting aye. 
 

(9) Agreement – Additional Information on the Selection of Consultant to Prepare 
an Update to the City’s General Plan Safety Element 

 
Presentation by City Planner Jim Morrissey. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith recommended that the Council move forward with the lowest bidder 
and approve the agreement with Atlas instead. 
 

Page 6207/07/2021 City Council Agenda DRAFT



7 
 

Motion and second by Mayor Pro Tem Smith/ Councilmember Greene to approve 
the contract with Atlas. 
 
Motion carried 3-1, with Councilmember Greene, Mayor Pro Tem Smith, 
Councilmember Welty voting aye, and Mayor Castillo voting no. 
 

(10) Agreement – Amendment to Cooperative Agreement with the County of 
Riverside for Fire Protection Services 

 
Presentation by City Manager Mann. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Motion and second by Mayor Pro Tem Smith/ Councilmember Welty to approve the 
agreement. 
 
Motion carried 4-0, with Councilmember Greene, Mayor Pro Tem Smith, 
Councilmember Welty, and Mayor Castillo voting aye. 
 

(11) Resolution – Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-29, Authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a Cooperative Agreement with the County of Riverside 
County for Dispatch and Communication Services 

 
Presentation by Fire Consultant/Interim Fire Chief Jeff LaTendresse. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Motion and second by Councilmember Greene/ Mayor Pro Tem Smith to adopt 
Resolution No. 2021-29. 
 
Motion carried 4-0, with Councilmember Greene, Mayor Pro Tem Smith, 
Councilmember Welty, and Mayor Castillo voting aye. 
 

(12) Agreement – Amendment to the Agreement between the City of Canyon Lake 
and Hinderliter de Llamas and Associates (HDL) 

 
Presentation by Finance Director Terry Shea. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Motion and second by Councilmembers Welty/Greene to approve Item 12. 
 
Motion carried 4-0, with Councilmember Greene, Mayor Pro Tem Smith, 
Councilmember Welty, and Mayor Castillo voting aye. 
 
 

Page 6307/07/2021 City Council Agenda DRAFT



8 
 

(13) Approval of City Budget  
 

• Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-30, Approving the City’s Fiscal Year 
2021-2022 Budget and Appropriations Limit 
 

• Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-31, Approving the Salary and Wage 
Schedule for Employees of the City of Canyon Lake for Fiscal Year 2021-
22 

 
Presentation by Finance Director Shea. 

 
There were no public comments. 
 
Motion and second by Mayor Pro Tem Smith/ Councilmember Greene to adopt 
Resolution No. 2021-30 & Resolution No. 2021-31. 

 
Motion carried 4-0, with Councilmember Greene, Mayor Pro Tem Smith, 
Councilmember Welty, and Mayor Castillo voting aye. 

 
(14) Fire Department Startup Update – Presentation by Fire Consultant/Interim Fire 

Chief Jeff LaTendresse 
 
Presentation by Fire Consultant/Interim Fire Chief LaTendresse. 
 
The following members of the public spoke: 

• Michael Zimmerman 
• Timothy Adams 
• Tyler Murdough 

 
City Clerk Sauseda read emailed submissions from the following: 

• Anthony Rodriguez 
 
City Manager Mann commented on this item. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 
 

City Manager Mann announced that the Celebration of Life for former Councilman 
Ehrenkranz would take place on Saturday, June 19, 2021, at 10:00 a.m. at the lodge and 
everyone was welcome to attend. 
 
COMMITTEE AND COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMENTS 
 
• COUNCILMEMBER GREENE 
Councilmember Greene stated that his committees would meet next week, and he would 
provide an update at the following Council meeting. He commented on the City’s Fire 
Department Startup. 

Page 6407/07/2021 City Council Agenda DRAFT



9 
 

• COUNCILMEMBER WELTY 
Councilmember Welty gave an update from LESJWA meeting and spoke briefly about 
Councilman Ehrenkranz.  
 
• MAYOR PRO TEM SMITH  
Mayor Pro Tem Smith gave updates from RCTC, RTA, and SCAG. Lastly, he stated that 
the Council was working hard on the City’s Fire Department and asked the community to 
work with the Council and not against them. 

 
• MAYOR CASTILLO 
Mayor Castillo thanked everyone for attending the meeting in honor of former Councilman 
Ehrenkranz and in support of his wife Jennie Ehrenkranz. She thanked the community for 
attending the Memorial Day event hosted by the City. She thanked the people in the 
audience who made comments on the City’s Fire Department and echoed the City 
Manager’s comments asking the community for their help. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Mayor Castillo announced that the next City Council meeting would take place on 
Wednesday, July 7th at 5:30 p.m. for closed session and 6:30 p.m. for open session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned in honor of former Councilman Jordan Ehrenkranz at 9:44 
p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Ana V. Sauseda, CMC  
City Clerk 

Page 6507/07/2021 City Council Agenda DRAFT



Page 6607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



4

Page 6707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 6807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 6907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 7007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 7107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 7207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 7307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 7407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 7507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 7607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 7707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 7807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 7907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 8007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 8107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 8207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



5

Page 8307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 8407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



THIS ITEM WILL BE AVAILABLE AT THE MEETING 

ITEM 6

Page 8507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 8607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



7

Page 8707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 8807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 8907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 9007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 9107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 9207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



ATTACHMENT 2 

Page 9307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 9407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 9507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 9607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 9707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 9807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 9907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 10007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 10107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 10207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 10307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 10407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 10507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 10607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 10707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 10807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 10907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 11007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 11107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 11207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 11307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 11407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 11507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 11607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 11707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Table of Contents page i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Section Page 

Executive Summary ..................................................................................................................................................... 1 
Recommendation........................................................................................................................................ 3 

Section 1—Study and Agency Background ............................................................................................................... 4 
1.1 How This Analysis Was Performed............................................................................................... 4 
1.2 Key Contract Measures per City .................................................................................................... 4 

Section 2—Existing Contract Fiscal Analysis ........................................................................................................... 8 
2.1 Existing Contract Fiscal Analysis and Costing Model .................................................................. 8 
2.2 Existing Contract Operational Analysis ........................................................................................ 9 

Section 3—Police JPA Fiscal Analysis ..................................................................................................................... 15 
3.1 Macro Cost Comparison of Personnel Costs for Current Sheriff’s Department Contract Costing 

to Police JPA ............................................................................................................................... 15 
3.2 JPA Start-up Cost Estimate ......................................................................................................... 18 
3.3 JPA Cost Allocation Methodology Options ................................................................................ 19 
3.4 New Sheriff’s Department Cost Control Measures ..................................................................... 20 

Section 4—Recommendation .................................................................................................................................... 22 

Table of Tables 

Table 1—Summary Personnel Cost and FTE Comparison ........................................................................................... 2 
Table 2—Estimated JPA Start-up Costs ........................................................................................................................ 2 
Table 3—Patrol Personnel Costs – FY 19/20 ................................................................................................................ 9 
Table 4—Patrol Rate Components – FY 19/20 ............................................................................................................. 9 
Table 5—Patrol Plus Dedicated Positions per City per Day – FY 19/20 .................................................................... 10 
Table 6—Rate-Supported Positions – FY 19/20 ......................................................................................................... 11 
Table 7—Dedicated and Rate Supported Positions – FY 19/20 .................................................................................. 13 
Table 8—Sheriff’s Department Costs – FY 19/20 Adopted Budgets .......................................................................... 16 
Table 9—JPA Cost Model with Current Service Levels – 80 Percent Classic / 20 Percent PEPRA........................... 17 
Table 10—Summary Personnel Cost and FTE Comparison ....................................................................................... 17 
Table 11—Estimated JPA Start-up Costs .................................................................................................................... 18 
Table 12—JPA Cost Allocation Formula Options – Using Sheriff’s Personnel Costs ................................................ 19 

  

 

Page 11807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Executive Summary page 1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, 
and Wildomar (Cities) retained Citygate Associates, LLC (Citygate) to study the feasibility of 
separating the Cities’ police services from the Riverside County (County) Sheriff’s Department 
into a city-centric Joint Powers Authority (JPA), with the intent to increase cost-effectiveness 
while retaining current service levels. 

This assessment was prompted by several years of rising costs for the Sheriff’s Department’s 
contracts to the Cities for local law enforcement services. It must be stressed that none of the Cities 
had problems with services or law enforcement leadership in their respective Cities. However, the 
large agency legacy costs and complicated formulas by which the Cities are charged for direct 
services, headquarters services, and overhead had risen to the point the Cities felt it necessary to 
study a fiscally responsible alternative without lowering services. City general taxes and revenues 
pay for the law enforcement contracts, and in most cities this expense is their largest, with no local 
control over annual cost increases, which strains the ability to provide other city services. 

In lieu of each city establishing its own police department with resultant duplicated headquarters 
and support costs, the Cities wanted to study establishing one new police agency under California 
law, which permits local governments of all types to use a JPA structure. JPAs can have governing 
boards comprised of members from the partner agencies and directly employ personnel and own 
and operate physical assets. 

In summary, this study finds and recommends the partners do not establish a police agency JPA 
but rather continue to work within the Sheriff’s Department’s recent efforts to more directly tailor 
city costs versus unincorporated area services and general County overhead. 

Citygate’s key findings are: 

◆ The Cities have been satisfied with police services provided by the Sheriff’s 
Department. 

◆ The Sheriff’s Department’s revised contract formulas are highly sophisticated. 

◆ The current city Sheriff’s Department’s staffing is not based on detailed workload 
analysis. 

◆ A macro analysis of JPA operational costs shows no savings. 

◆ The fiscal situation post-COVID-19 has worsened, likely curtailing the ability to 
fund a large new agency’s start-up costs. 

Page 11907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Executive Summary page 2 

The summary personnel cost comparison model of the current costs and full-time equivalents 
(FTEs) versus a JPA revealed the following: 

Table 1—Summary Personnel Cost and FTE Comparison 

Element Sheriff’s Department  JPA 

Total Sworn FTE 445.2 453.8 

Total Non-Sworn FTE 215.0 215.0 

Total FTE 660.2 668.8 

Total Annual Cost $135,294,526 $139,056,052 

This cost estimate model is based on the current as-is number of Sheriff’s Department personnel 
supporting the Cities’ contracts plus Citygate’s estimate of headquarters services positions. The 
JPA personnel costs were calculated using an 80/20 split between classic CalPERS retirement 
formulas and Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) based on the need to hire middle 
and upper rank employees, as well as the multitude of CalPERS employer regulations. 

The total annual Sheriff’s Department’s costs in Table 1 are based on Fiscal Year (FY) 19/20 
adopted budgets as published on each city’s website; actual year-end closing costs were lower at 
$125,416,738, per Sheriff’s Department Administration. The adopted budgets are forecasted prior 
to each fiscal year and are impacted by staffing changes throughout the year, leading to the actual 
costs incurred. Given that these staffing changes are fluid year over year, Citygate used the more 
stable cost comparison of the adopted budget to compare with the estimated JPA model. 

Estimated start-up costs are as follows: 

Table 2—Estimated JPA Start-up Costs 

Category Cost 

Real Estate – Facilities ($900 x 43,000 sq. ft.) $38,700,000 

Fleet – Vehicles ($45,000 x 325) $14,625,000 

Police Safety Equipment ($9,000 x 445) $5,000,000 

Information Technology $2,500,000 

Communications (Dispatch) Infrastructure $15,000,000 

Miscellaneous $4,500,000 

Total  $80,325,000 

According to a Citygate partner firm, JKA Architecture, new public safety building construction 
costs are estimated between $800 to $1,000 per square foot and $550 to $600 for remodeling an 

Page 12007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Executive Summary page 3 

existing building. Those are hard costs. Soft costs (design fees, permits, project management or 
construction management fees, etc.) can add an additional 30 percent to the overall costs. 
Construction costs may be offset by utilizing city-owned building spaces. 

Without start-up costs, a fully functional year-one JPA is more expensive. When start-up costs are 
added, the expense only increases with the amount of needed building work and equipment costs 
paid for using debt financing. The debt service payment annually adds more to the cost gap. The 
previous model also assumes the County will provide dispatching and radio system access at a 
reasonable cost. If the Cities’ police JPA needs to construct and operate dispatching and radio/data 
services over a large geography, then the annual JPA cost estimate will be substantially higher.  

In addition to the start-up costs, there is also the practical difficulty in recruiting, hiring, on-
boarding, and training a 669-person workforce to new agency standards. This would require the 
legal establishment of the JPA as an employer, along with enough of a command and human 
resources staff to set up the agency and hire the employees. In the first two years, no services 
would likely be provided at all to the Cities, so all these costs are in addition to the current contract 
amounts. It is only by year three that phased-in conversion of services city by city could 
commence, and this will likely take two to three years depending on the rate of hiring. 

Citygate observes that all of the Sheriff’s Department’s proposed and currently implemented 
staffing cost efficiencies are best practices and that appropriately using parts or all of them is the 
best way to avoid unnecessary over deployment (cost) for the field patrol units. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the current Sheriff’s Department Administration’s willingness to research and develop 
cost-control initiatives, and given this preliminary JPA cost estimation is substantially higher than 
the current contract amounts, Citygate recommends the Cities pursue the Sheriff’s Department’s 
cost-controlling initiatives in-lieu of a JPA.  

Additionally, over the next year, the Cities should request the Sheriff’s Department conduct an 
incident and community policing workload demand-based staffing study to further tailor their costs 
to the needs of each city. This study would effectively be a Policing Master Plan per city to include 
staffing levels, innovation, community engagement, oversight, and social justice/equity structures. 

Page 12107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 1—Study and Agency Background page 4 

SECTION 1—STUDY AND AGENCY BACKGROUND 

1.1 HOW THIS ANALYSIS WAS PERFORMED 

Citygate reviewed prior studies on JPA feasibility issues and provided a large background 
document and electronic incident data request to the Sheriff’s Department. Citygate then met 
multiple times with the Cities and regional Sheriff’s Department leadership, as needed, to: 

◆ Obtain follow-up information to understand current deployment and special 
services. 

◆ Interview the Sheriff’s Department’s Command Staff for each city and the Sheriff’s 
Department’s Administrative Supervisor in charge of administering the police 
services contracts on contract pricing for each city. 

◆ Discuss the risks to be protected in each city and any necessary near-term changes 
to policing to accommodate changes envisioned in each city. 

◆ Obtain the current Sheriff’s Department’s contracts by city, with costing 
itemizations, to include direct and indirect charges for all types of services, along 
with the regional cost sharing of services such as dispatch and specialty teams. 
These issues were all tracked through the cost-allocation methodology and 
compared to the different sized Cities in this study. 

◆ Discuss the possibility of city cost-control better alignment of city versus County 
costs with a newly established Sheriff’s Department Research and Development 
Unit. 

◆ Conduct a high-level workload analysis based on the data received to determine the 
need for each city’s staffing and test the costs of several scenarios for a new 
employer JPA based on the study’s staffing model and the necessary headquarters 
bureaus. 

◆ Compare the JPA operating and start-up costs to the Sheriff’s Department’s 
envisioned improvements to the contract cost model. 

1.2 KEY CONTRACT MEASURES PER CITY 

The following measures allow an understanding of the different scale and complexity in policing 
the different Cities: 

Canyon Lake 

◆ Overall budget: $1,778,934 (FY 19/20 adopted budget) 

Page 12207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 1—Study and Agency Background page 5 

➢ Patrol operations: 24 hours per day (5 Deputies) 

◆ Special services 

➢ None 

◆ Operated from the Sheriff’s Department’s Lake Elsinore Station 

Jurupa Valley 

◆ Overall budget: $20,460,073 (FY 19/20 adopted budget) 

➢ Patrol operations: 180 hours per day (37 Deputies) 

◆ Special services 

➢ Traffic team (6 Deputies) 

➢ Community policing (2 Deputies) 

➢ Special Enforcement Team (SET) (6 Deputies) 

➢ 5 dedicated Community Service Officers 

◆ Operated from the Sheriff’s Department’s Jurupa Valley Station 

Lake Elsinore 

◆ Overall budget: $14,369,910 (FY 19/20 adopted budget) 

➢ Patrol operations: 130.8 hours per day (27 Deputies) 

◆ Special services  

➢ Traffic team (4 Deputies) 

➢ SET / community patrol / lake patrol (5 Deputies, 1 Sergeant) 

➢ 5 dedicated Community Service Officers 

◆ Operated from the Sheriff’s Department’s Lake Elsinore Station 

Moreno Valley 

◆ Overall budget: $45,267,540 (FY 19/20 adopted budget) 

➢ Patrol operations: 458.5 hours per day (94 Deputies) 

◆ Special services 

➢ 1 Captain (90 percent) 

Page 12307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 1—Study and Agency Background page 6 

➢ Traffic team (9 Deputies, 1 Sergeant) 

➢ K9 teams (3 Deputies) 

➢ Crime prevention / graffiti prevention (4 Deputies)  

➢ 17 dedicated Community Service Officers 

➢ 1 Supervising Office Assistant 

➢ 1 Office Assistant 

◆ Operated from the Sheriff’s Department’s Moreno Valley Station 

San Jacinto 

◆ Overall budget: $13,254,533 (FY 19/20 adopted budget) 

➢ Patrol operations: 97 hours per day (20 Deputies) 

◆ Special services 

➢ K9 team (1 Deputy)  

➢ Traffic team (4 Deputies, 1 Sergeant) 

➢ Problem-Oriented Policing (POP) (4 Deputies) 

➢ Crime Analyst (0.5) 

➢ 4 dedicated Community Service Officers 

➢ 2 Office Assistants 

◆ Operated from the Sheriff’s Department’s Hemet Station 

Temecula 

◆ Overall budget: $34,860,436 (FY 19/20 adopted budget) 

➢ Patrol operations: 205 hours per day (42 Deputies) 

◆ Special services 

➢ 2 Sheriff’s Department Lieutenants 

➢ Traffic team (17 Deputies, 1 Sergeant) 

➢ SET (5 Deputies, 1 Sergeant) 

➢ Mall Officers (4 Deputies) 

Page 12407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 1—Study and Agency Background page 7 

➢ K9 teams (2 Deputies) 

➢ POP team (8 Deputies, 1 Sergeant)  

➢ Gang / Pechanga / School Resource Officers (4.5 Deputies) 

➢ 17 dedicated Community Service Officers 

◆ Operated from the Sheriff’s Department’s Southwest Station 

Wildomar 

◆ Overall budget: $5,303,100 (FY 19/20 adopted budget) 

➢ Patrol operations: 70 hours per day (14 Deputies) 

◆ Special services 

➢ Traffic team (1 Deputy) 

➢ Community patrol (1 Deputy)  

➢ 1 dedicated Community Service Officer 

◆ Operated from the Sheriff’s Department’s Lake Elsinore Station 

Page 12507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 2—Existing Contract Fiscal Analysis page 8 

SECTION 2—EXISTING CONTRACT FISCAL ANALYSIS 

2.1 EXISTING CONTRACT FISCAL ANALYSIS AND COSTING MODEL 

The current Sheriff’s Department contract model identifies fully burdened (pay plus benefits) 
hourly rates to be charged to applicable contract Cities for Sheriff’s Department services at the 
beginning of a fiscal year. The model is updated annually based on the prior fiscal year actuals, 
and components in the rate structure are updated as needed. The Cities receive a bill for costs that 
should have been charged, due by the end of July each year. In the spring of each fiscal year, an 
annual presentation is made to the Cities explaining the revised rates and presenting the estimated 
costs for the upcoming year. 

The cost categories are: 

◆ Class 1 – wages, special pays, and benefits (e.g., pension, health, workers’ 
compensation, etc.) 

◆ Class 2 – materials, services, and supplies 

◆ Internal service fund costs – motor pool, radio shop, etc. 

◆ Countywide cost allocation plan (COWCAP) – equipment use allowance and 
administrative costs (e.g., human resources, county counsel, purchasing) 

◆ Hourly rates for positions vary depending on dedication levels and support levels. 

The rate components are: 

◆ Patrol Officers – Deputy Sheriffs and Corporals 

◆ Sworn support – Lieutenants, Sergeants, and Investigators 

◆ Central dispatch – various communications-related positions 

◆ Classified support – classified Analysts, Community Services Officers, Accounting 
Technicians, etc. 

◆ Other support services – other supportive personnel (e.g., records, information 
technology, training, human resources, and accounting). 

The fully burdened hourly rate uses an estimate of total annual productive hours (annual minus 
earned leave and training hours) for all applicable patrol personnel. In FY 19/20, the total 
productive hours used were 1,338,306. Overtime and mileage costs are billed separately and not 
included in the personnel base rates. 

Page 12607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 2—Existing Contract Fiscal Analysis page 9 

This study used the Sheriff’s Department’s personnel cost model as depicted in the following table: 

Table 3—Patrol Personnel Costs – FY 19/20 

FY 2019-20 Rate 
Component 

Average 
Salary and 

Benefits per 
FTE 

Average Other 
Compensation 

per FTE 

Average Annual 
Salary/Benefit/ 

Other 
Compensation 
Cost per FTE 

Average 
Annual 

Supplies and 
Services Cost 

per FTE 

Average Total 
Annual Cost 

per FTE 

Patrol Officers $151,712 $4,522 $156,235 $28,099 $184,334 

Sworn Support $213,075 $16,828 $229,903 $26,089 $255,993 

Central Dispatch $65,827 $9,927 $229,903 $8,273 $238,176 

Classified Support $89,461 $2,207 $125,665 $25,784 $151,449 

Other Support Services $102,126 $4,146 $106,272 $23,405 $129,677 

Total $153,789 $7,638 $161,427 $25,047 $180,138 

When summarized in the following table, the field patrol personnel dollars calculation yielded the 
hourly rates for the personnel costs per city: 

Table 4—Patrol Rate Components – FY 19/20 

FY 2019-20 Rate 
Component 

Cost Categories 

Total Cost 

Total Annual 
Applicable 

Patrol 
Personnel 
Productive 

Hours 
Hourly 
Rate 

Number 
of FTEs 
Included 
in Rate Class 1 Class 2 

Internal 
Service 
Funds/ 

COWCAP 

Patrol Officers $116,551,049 $20,961,875  $137,512,924 1,338,306 $102.75 746.0 

Sworn Support $57,016,026 $6,470,115  $63,486,141 1,338,306 $47.44 248.0 

Central Dispatch $18,786,898 $1,236,748  $20,023,646 1,338,306 $14.96 149.5 

Classified Support $13,704,359 $4,326,573  $18,030,932 1,338,306 $13.47 167.8 

Other Support Services $9,830,168 $2,164,971 $1,829,562 $13,824,701 1,338,306 $10.33 92.5 

Total $215,888,500 $35,160,282 $1,829,562 $252,878,344 1,338,306 $188.95 1,403.8 

2.2 EXISTING CONTRACT OPERATIONAL ANALYSIS 

The following series of tables explains the total number of FTE employee positions currently 
supported directly and indirectly by the city contracts based on the aforementioned Sheriff’s 
Department’s cost model.   

Page 12707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 2—Existing Contract Fiscal Analysis page 10 

Table 5—Patrol Plus Dedicated Positions per City per Day – FY 19/20 

Position  Rate 
Canyon 

Lake 
Jurupa 
Valley 

Lake 
Elsinore 

Moreno 
Valley 

San 
Jacinto Temecula Wildomar Total 

Patrol Hours Contracted    24.00 180.00 130.80 458.50 97.00 205.00 70.00 1,165.30 

Police Officers – Patrol1  $188.95 4.92 36.91 26.82 94.02 19.89 42.04 14.35 238.95 

Police Officers – Dedicated Supported2 $161.73 0.00 14.00 6.00 12.00 9.00 37.00 1.00 79.00 

Police Officer – Dedicated Unsupported $88.14 0.00 0.00 3.00 4.00 0.00 3.50 1.00 11.50 

Sergeants – Dedicated $124.28 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 3.00 0.00 6.00 

Lieutenants – Dedicated $138.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 0.00 2.00 

Captains – Dedicated $157.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90 

CSOs – Dedicated $61.65 0.00 5.00 5.00 21.00 4.00 17.00 1.00 53.00 

Office Assistants – Dedicated $39.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 5.00 

Crime Analyst – Dedicated $60.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.50 

Total FTEs   4.92 55.91 41.82 134.92 37.39 104.54 17.35 396.85 
1 Calculated based on 1,780 productive annual hours 
2 Calculated based on 2,080 annual hours 

Service levels in each city vary based on their individual size and needs and are specifically 
enumerated in the scope of service section of the city’s contract. The basic service provided is 
patrol and is quantified by the hour. Each city contracts for a specific number of patrol hours each 
day to handle public-generated calls for service (i.e., 9-1-1 calls). In Table 5, these patrol hours are 
listed for each city in the first row, which is highlighted in yellow. The number of FTE positions 
needed to meet the daily patrol hour obligation is calculated on an annual basis and charged at the 
fully burdened hourly contract rate, as depicted in Table 4 ($188.95). The second row of Table 5, 
highlighted blue and labeled “Police Officers – Patrol,” identifies this FTE position number for 
each city. For the purposes of this study, the titles of Police Officer and Deputy Sheriff are 
synonymous; the latter title is used for specific employees of the Sheriff’s Department and the 
former for specific employees of a potential JPA.  

If a city desires additional sworn officer positions for services other than patrol, such as traffic 
enforcement, community policing, police dogs (K9), etc., these are considered special services and 
those positions that are also enumerated in a city’s contract are called “dedicated” positions. In 
Table 5, these positions are captured in the third row titled “Police Officers – Dedicated Supported” 
and are also highlighted blue.   

The two aforementioned FTE types that are highlighted in blue in the table form the basis for all 
of the “rate-supported” positions to be discussed later. There is a third classification of sworn 
officer positions listed in Table 5 titled “Police Officer – Dedicated Unsupported” and highlighted 
peach. These positions are assigned to a city and do not require additional support (i.e., dispatch 

Page 12807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 2—Existing Contract Fiscal Analysis page 11 

services, crime scene support, etc.); they are not factored into the rate-supported positions 
calculation.   

In addition to the patrol officer positions and the dedicated police officer (Deputy Sheriff) positions 
listed, a city can contract for other dedicated positions, such as Sergeants, Lieutenants, Community 
Service Officers (CSOs), etc. These positions are calculated at their weighted salary rate and are 
listed in Table 5 as dedicated positions.   

Included in the contracted rate for the positions highlighted in blue are all of the rate-supported 
functions including sworn patrol, sworn support, central dispatch, classified support, and other 
support services shown in Table 4, which includes the positions described in Table 6.   

All of the aforementioned FTE positions are enumerated in the city contracts and are assigned to 
the various Sheriff’s Department stations associated with the city contract.   

The following table reflects the rate-supported positions as previously mentioned.   

Table 6—Rate-Supported Positions – FY 19/20 

Position  Ratio 
Canyon 

Lake 
Jurupa 
Valley 

Lake 
Elsinore 

Moreno 
Valley 

San 
Jacinto Temecula Wildomar Total 

Investigators – Rate Supported 9.80 0.50 5.20 3.30 10.80 2.90 8.10 1.60 32.40 

Sergeants – Rate Supported 7.00 0.70 7.30 4.70 15.10 4.10 11.30 2.20 45.40 

Lieutenant – Rate Supported  27.00 0.20 1.90 1.20 3.90 1.10 2.90 0.60 11.80 

CSOs – Rate Supported 17.50 0.30 2.90 1.90 6.10 1.70 4.50 0.90 18.30 

SSOs – Rate Supported 41.77 0.10 1.20 0.80 2.50 0.70 1.90 0.40 7.60 

Accounting Technicians – Rate Supported 19.59 0.30 2.60 1.70 5.40 1.50 4.00 0.80 16.30 

Office Assistants – Rate Supported 11.13 0.40 4.60 2.90 9.50 2.60 7.10 1.40 28.50 

Central Homicide – Rate Supported 39.50 0.10 1.30 0.80 2.70 0.70 2.00 0.40 8.00 

Administration (Internal Affairs) – Rate Supported 86.80 0.10 0.60 0.40 1.20 0.30 0.90 0.20 3.70 

Personnel (Recruiting) – Rate Supported 89.80 0.10 0.60 0.40 1.20 0.30 0.90 0.20 3.70 

Information Services (IT) – Rate Supported 28.30 0.20 1.80 1.20 3.70 1.00 2.80 0.50 11.20 

Dispatch – Rate Supported 5.00 1.00 10.20 6.60 21.20 5.80 15.80 3.10 63.70 

Accounting (Finance) – Rate Supported 52.00 0.10 1.00 0.60 2.00 0.60 1.50 0.30 6.10 

Technical Services Bureau – Rate Supported 81.00 0.10 0.60 0.40 1.30 0.40 1.00 0.20 4.00 

Grant Writing – Rate Supported 399.90 0.00 0.10 0.10 0.30 0.10 0.20 0.00 0.80 

Training Center (Range) – Rate Supported 182.00 0.00 0.30 0.20 0.60 0.20 0.40 0.10 1.80 

Total FTEs   4.20 42.20 27.20 87.50 24.00 65.30 12.90 263.30 

Rate-supported positions are calculated by adding the total number of Police Officers – Patrol 
(Table 5, second row) and the total number of Police Officers – Dedicated Supported (Table 5, 
third row) assigned to a city. Those two combined numbers are then multiplied against a ratio 

Page 12907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 2—Existing Contract Fiscal Analysis page 12 

determined by the Sheriff’s Department to come up with a rate-supported position. For example, 
Investigators are included in the rate-supported ratio of 9.80; meaning that for every 9.80 Police 
Officer – Patrol and Police Officer – Dedicated Supported positions a city pays for, one FTE 
Investigator is included.   

Using San Jacinto for illustration purposes, the calculation is as follows:  

(19.89 + 9) / 9.80 = 2.9 Investigators (rate-supported by San Jacinto contract) 

These positions are reflected in Table 6. The non-highlighted positions are those FTEs that directly 
support the patrol and dedicated positions and work out of each city’s respective Sheriff’s 
Department station. The light-yellow positions are those FTEs that are included in the rate but are 
centrally located and operate on a regional basis, most often from the Sheriff’s Department’s 
Headquarters. 

The costing structure of dedicated or rate-supported personnel is necessary and common in local 
government costing contracts. There needs to be a method to fractionally expense central 
administration services at different usage rates to each position dedicated to a city’s contract.  

The cost model to derive personnel costs to each city then adds the patrol, dedicated, and rate-

supported positions together. For the purpose of Citygate expensing a separated police JPA, the 
following table shows the total contracted for positions if all the Cities formed one police JPA. 

Page 13007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 2—Existing Contract Fiscal Analysis page 13 

Table 7—Dedicated and Rate Supported Positions – FY 19/20 

Position  Rate Ratio 
Canyon 

Lake 
Jurupa 
Valley 

Lake 
Elsinore 

Moreno 
Valley 

San 
Jacinto Temecula Wildomar Total 

Patrol Hours Contracted      24.00 180.00 130.80 458.50 97.00 205.00 70.00 1,165.30 

Police Officers – Patrol  $188.95   4.92 36.91 26.82 94.02 19.89 42.04 14.35 238.95 

Police Officers – Dedicated Supported $161.73   0.00 14.00 6.00 12.00 9.00 37.00 1.00 79.00 

Police Officer – Dedicated Unsupported $88.14   0.00 0.00 3.00 4.00 0.00 3.50 1.00 11.50 

Investigators – Rate Supported  9.80 0.50 5.20 3.30 10.80 2.90 8.10 1.60 32.40 

Sergeants – Rate Supported  7.00 0.70 7.30 4.70 15.10 4.10 11.30 2.20 45.40 

Sergeants – Dedicated $124.28   0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 3.00 0.00 6.00 

Lieutenant – Rate Supported   27.00 0.20 1.90 1.20 3.90 1.10 2.90 0.60 11.80 

Lieutenants – Dedicated $138.67   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 0.00 2.00 

Captains – Dedicated $157.08   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90 

CSOs – Rate Supported  17.50 0.30 2.90 1.90 6.10 1.70 4.50 0.90 18.30 

CSOs – Dedicated $61.65   0.00 5.00 5.00 21.00 4.00 17.00 1.00 53.00 

SSOs – Rate Supported  41.77 0.10 1.20 0.80 2.50 0.70 1.90 0.40 7.60 

Accounting Technicians – Rate Supported  19.59 0.30 2.60 1.70 5.40 1.50 4.00 0.80 16.30 

Office Assistants – Rate Supported  11.13 0.40 4.60 2.90 9.50 2.60 7.10 1.40 28.50 

Office Assistants – Dedicated $39.30   0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 5.00 

Crime Analyst – Dedicated $60.04   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.50 

Central Homicide – Rate Supported  39.50 0.10 1.30 0.80 2.70 0.70 2.00 0.40 8.00 

Administration (Internal Affairs) – Rate Supported  86.80 0.10 0.60 0.40 1.20 0.30 0.90 0.20 3.70 

Personnel (Recruiting) – Rate Supported  89.80 0.10 0.60 0.40 1.20 0.30 0.90 0.20 3.70 

Information Services (IT) – Rate Supported  28.30 0.20 1.80 1.20 3.70 1.00 2.80 0.50 11.20 

Dispatch – Rate Supported  5.00 1.00 10.20 6.60 21.20 5.80 15.80 3.10 63.70 

Accounting (Finance) – Rate Supported  52.00 0.10 1.00 0.60 2.00 0.60 1.50 0.30 6.10 

Technical Services Bureau – Rate Supported  81.00 0.10 0.60 0.40 1.30 0.40 1.00 0.20 4.00 

Grant Writing – Rate Supported  399.90 0.00 0.10 0.10 0.30 0.10 0.20 0.00 0.80 

Training Center (Range) – Rate Supported  182.00 0.00 0.30 0.20 0.60 0.20 0.40 0.10 1.80 

Total Sworn FTEs    6.62 68.11 47.82 147.42 39.49 114.04 21.65 445.15 

Total Non-Sworn FTEs    2.50 30.00 21.20 75.00 21.90 55.80 8.60 215.00 

Total FTEs    9.12 98.11 69.02 222.42 61.39 169.84 30.25 660.2 

However, the 660 positions that would yield a singular city-centric police department do not 
include Sheriff’s Department central administration positions that, by policy, were never expensed 

to the Cities’ contracts, including: 

◆ Sheriff’s Department Executive Management Team  

◆ Station Captains 

◆ Station crime analysis capability / unit 

Page 13107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 2—Existing Contract Fiscal Analysis page 14 

◆ Station forensic units 

◆ Social media 

Later in this JPA analysis, some of these positions will be added to the separated police JPA, which 
further increases the costs for the JPA. 

Page 13207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 3—Police JPA Fiscal Analysis page 15 

SECTION 3—POLICE JPA FISCAL ANALYSIS 

3.1 MACRO COST COMPARISON OF PERSONNEL COSTS FOR CURRENT SHERIFF’S 
DEPARTMENT CONTRACT COSTING TO POLICE JPA 

The final Citygate research step was to create a staffing and cost plan for a multiple-city police 
JPA. In 2020, the Sheriff’s Department was still working on testing cost control measures to the 
differing contract Cities, so Citygate chose to build a cost estimation model for the JPA using 
personnel and contract costs from FY 19/20. It was assumed that if the JPA was more expensive 
in this comparison, any cost savings the Sheriff’s Department adopted into future contracts would 
only widen the cost differences between contracting and a multiple-city police JPA operation.  

The following set of JPA cost model tables assumes the following: 

◆ FY 19/20 Sheriff’s Department personnel costs. 

◆ FY 19/20 patrol and headquarters positions. Citygate reviewed field deployment 
plans, which, along with Citygate’s interviews, determined that patrol staffing 
levels are not currently based on any evidence-based workload analysis. For JPA 
cost comparison purposes, Citygate used the current staffing levels for FY 19/20.  

◆ Given the Sheriff’s Department contracts do not expense executive management 
positions, these had to be estimated and added to the personnel costs. 

Based on this cost model framework, the following table shows the combined cost for all 
personnel, by city, in the city contracts: 

Page 13307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 3—Police JPA Fiscal Analysis page 16 

Table 8—Sheriff’s Department Costs – FY 19/20 Adopted Budgets  

Position  Rate Ratio 
Canyon 

Lake 
Jurupa 
Valley 

Lake 
Elsinore 

Moreno 
Valley 

San  
Jacinto Temecula Wildomar Total 

Patrol Hours Contracted      24.00 180.00 130.80 458.50 97.00 205.00 70.00 1,165.30 

Police Officers – Patrol  $188.95   4.92 36.91 26.82 94.02 19.89 42.04 14.35 238.95 

Police Officers – Dedicated Supported $161.73   0.00 14.00 6.00 12.00 9.00 37.00 1.00 79.00 

Police Officer – Dedicated Unsupported $88.14   0.00 0.00 3.00 4.00 0.00 3.50 1.00 11.50 

Investigators – Rate Supported  9.80 0.50 5.20 3.30 10.80 2.90 8.10 1.60 32.40 

Sergeants – Rate Supported  7.00 0.70 7.30 4.70 15.10 4.10 11.30 2.20 45.40 

Sergeants – Dedicated $124.28   0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 3.00 0.00 6.00 

Lieutenant – Rate Supported   27.00 0.20 1.90 1.20 3.90 1.10 2.90 0.60 11.80 

Lieutenants – Dedicated $138.67   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 0.00 2.00 

Captains – Dedicated $157.08   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90 

CSOs – Rate Supported  17.50 0.30 2.90 1.90 6.10 1.70 4.50 0.90 18.30 

CSOs – Dedicated $61.65   0.00 5.00 5.00 21.00 4.00 17.00 1.00 53.00 

SSOs – Rate Supported  41.77 0.10 1.20 0.80 2.50 0.70 1.90 0.40 7.60 

Accounting Technicians – Rate Supported  19.59 0.30 2.60 1.70 5.40 1.50 4.00 0.80 16.30 

Office Assistants – Rate Supported  11.13 0.40 4.60 2.90 9.50 2.60 7.10 1.40 28.50 

Office Assistants – Dedicated $39.30   0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 5.00 

Crime Analyst – Dedicated $60.04   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.50 

Central Homicide – Rate Supported  39.50 0.10 1.30 0.80 2.70 0.70 2.00 0.40 8.00 

Administration (Internal Affairs) – Rate Supported  86.80 0.10 0.60 0.40 1.20 0.30 0.90 0.20 3.70 

Personnel (Recruiting) – Rate Supported  89.80 0.10 0.60 0.40 1.20 0.30 0.90 0.20 3.70 

Information Services (IT) – Rate Supported  28.30 0.20 1.80 1.20 3.70 1.00 2.80 0.50 11.20 

Dispatch – Rate Supported  5.00 1.00 10.20 6.60 21.20 5.80 15.80 3.10 63.70 

Accounting (Finance) – Rate Supported  52.00 0.10 1.00 0.60 2.00 0.60 1.50 0.30 6.10 

Technical Services Bureau – Rate Supported  81.00 0.10 0.60 0.40 1.30 0.40 1.00 0.20 4.00 

Grant Writing – Rate Supported  399.90 0.00 0.10 0.10 0.30 0.10 0.20 0.00 0.80 

Training Center (Range) – Rate Supported  182.00 0.00 0.30 0.20 0.60 0.20 0.40 0.10 1.80 

Total Sworn FTEs    6.62 68.11 47.82 147.42 39.49 114.04 21.65 445.15 

Total Non-Sworn FTEs    2.50 30.00 21.20 75.00 21.90 55.80 8.60 215.00 

Total FTEs    9.12 98.11 69.02 222.42 61.39 169.84 30.25 660.2 

FY 2019-20 Adopted Budgets   $1,778,934 $20,460,073 $14,369,910 $45,267,540 $13,254,533 $34,860,436 $5,303,100 $135,294,526 

Based on Citygate’s review of each city contract and interviews with Sheriff’s Department 
command staff personnel assigned to the supporting Sheriff’s Department stations, the FTE 
calculations and rate formulas used in the preceding tables are appropriate.  

The following table adds JPA executive management positions for Police Chief, a Deputy Chief, 
and Bureau Captains to the positions in Table 7 and Table 8. Also added is an estimate for services, 
supplies, differential pay, overtime, etc. For pension expense, given likely CalPERS regulations 
with the JPA’s need to employ lateral hire mid- and upper management personnel plus 

Page 13407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 3—Police JPA Fiscal Analysis page 17 

investigators, the pension costs are estimated at CalPERS legacy classic employee pension costs 
for 80 percent of the workforce, with the remaining 20 percent of the workforce at entry-level 
positions or employees new to CalPERS under the pension reform PEPRA rates.  

The net result of this table and the JPA cost model is a total of 669 full-time personnel at an 
estimated annual cost of $139,056,052: 

Table 9—JPA Cost Model with Current Service Levels – 80 Percent Classic / 20 Percent 
PEPRA 

Position Classification 

Total Salary 
and Benefits 

of the 
Position 
(Classic) 

Total Salary 
and Benefits 

of the 
Position 
(PEPRA) 

Proposed 
FTEs 

Blended 
Total Costs 
(80-20 Split) 

Police Chief $446,557 $423,039 1.0 $441,853 

Deputy Police Chief $341,843 $324,153 2.0 $676,611 

Captain $301,359 $286,062 7.0 $2,088,096 

Lieutenant $261,182 $248,121 14.8 $3,826,829 

Sergeant $231,995 $221,040 54.3 $12,478,352 

Investigator $212,868 $202,978 40.2 $8,477,764 

Corporal $192,943 $184,162 0.0 - 

Patrol Officer $192,943 $184,162 334.5 $63,951,908 

All non-sworn positions averaged  $106,792 $106,792 215.0 $22,960,362 

Service/supplies costs per sworn 
position $45,038 $45,038 453.8 $20,438,277 

Differential pay/mileage/overtime/ 
other outside of above       $3,716,000 

Total     668.8 $139,056,052 

The following table summarizes the total position quantities and costs between the FY 19/20 
Sheriff personnel contract costs and the JPA model personnel cost estimate: 

Table 10—Summary Personnel Cost and FTE Comparison 

Element Sheriff’s Department JPA 

Total Sworn FTE 445.2 453.8 

Total Non-Sworn FTE 215.0 215.0 

Total FTE 660.2 668.8 

Total Annual Cost $135,294,526 $139,056,052 

Page 13507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 3—Police JPA Fiscal Analysis page 18 

The city contracts each year provide for an estimated budget. At the end of a fiscal year there is a 
true up where the Cities are charged only the actual costs. At the close of FY 19/20, the Sheriff’s 
Department’s fiscal team reported the final contract city charge to be $125,416,738, or 
approximately $10 million less due to some efficiencies being implemented, a lower-than-
estimated need for overtime, and unfilled positions (normal in any large organization due to 
retirements and academy dates). The same will be true for a JPA; costs can shift slightly year over 
year, even if salary, pension, and health costs stay the same. However, it should be noted that FY 
19/20 was extraordinary due to widespread economic disruptions caused by COVID-19 stay-at-
home orders and business closures. The staffing flexibility in a crisis the Cities enjoyed through 
direct dialogue with Sheriff’s Department Administration would be difficult for a JPA to replicate. 

3.2 JPA START-UP COST ESTIMATE 

Even if the personnel costs for the JPA were the same or less than the Sheriff’s Department’s, 
starting a new agency of 669 personnel is a large, expensive effort. Even if some services can 
continue to be contracted, start-up and service contracts need to be understood and added to the 
previously listed personnel costs. The following table shows the estimated start-up and contract 
service costs for a police JPA. While 9-1-1 dispatch center and technology services might possibly 
be contracted through the Sheriff’s Department, that feasibility is unknown at this point. Therefore, 
the following table includes dispatch center spaces and all needed technology services provided 
by the JPA.  

Table 11—Estimated JPA Start-up Costs 

Category Cost 

Real Estate – Facilities ($900 x 43,000 sq. ft.) $38,700,000 

Fleet – Vehicles ($45,000 x 325) $14,625,000 

Police Safety Equipment ($9,000 x 445) $5,000,000 

Information Technology $2,500,000 

Communications (Dispatch) Infrastructure $15,000,000 

Miscellaneous $4,500,000 

Total  $80,325,000 

The Sheriff’s Department owns some of the facilities. Some police station spaces in some of the 
Cities might be able to utilize city-owned building space. If not, according to a Citygate partner 
firm, JKA Architecture, new building construction costs for public safety “essential buildings” 
under the California State building codes are estimated between $800 and $1,000 per square foot 
and $550 to $600 for remodeling an existing building. Those are hard costs. Soft costs (design 
fees, permits, furnishings, fixtures, equipment, and project management or construction 

Page 13607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 3—Police JPA Fiscal Analysis page 19 

management fees, etc.) can add an additional 30 percent to the overall costs. If even five new police 
buildings were built with bonds, there is still an added cost for debt service, which further increases 
the cost difference with contracting and operating a JPA police department. 

3.3 JPA COST ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY OPTIONS 

In a shared sub-regional police department, there must be mechanisms for local control via elected 
officials, along with the ability to share costs equitably between cities of very different sizes with 
different policing needs. 

California’s JPA law allows for this. In a JPA of this size, the Board of Directors would typically 
be elected officials from the member cities. The Board would hire and manage the Police Chief as 
the JPA’s administrative leader, accountable to the Board. When the JPA is set up, the founding 
agencies would choose the voting rules—either simple majority or weighted by agency size.  

There are multiple cost allocation strategies possible within the structure of a JPA: per capita, 9-1-1 
incident workload (calls for service), quantity of dedicated staffing, use of special teams, blended 
multiple-part formulas, etc. As an illustration, the following table compares the Sheriff’s 
personnel-only costs shared across common formulas, including resident population, budget ratio, 
number of sworn police officers, the number of all police department personnel as FTE, and 
percentage of 9-1-1 incidents. 

Table 12—JPA Cost Allocation Formula Options – Using Sheriff’s Personnel Costs 

 

Canyon 
Lake 

Jurupa 
Valley 

Lake 
Elsinore 

Moreno 
Valley 

San 
Jacinto Temecula Wildomar Total 

Population 11,106 103,784 64,037 205,034 47,474 112,230 36,162 579,827 

Percentage 1.92% 17.90% 11.04% 35.36% 8.19% 19.36% 6.24% 100.00% 

Budget $1,778,934 $20,460,073 $14,369,910 $45,267,540 $13,254,533 $34,860,436 $5,303,100 $135,294,526 

Percentage 1.31% 15.12% 10.60% 33.40% 9.78% 25.72% 3.91% 100.00% 

Sworn 6.62 68.11 47.82 147.42 39.49 114.04 21.65 445.15 

Percentage 1.49% 15.30% 10.74% 33.12% 8.87% 25.62% 4.86% 100.00% 

Total FTE 9.12 98.11 69.02 222.42 61.39 169.84 30.25 660.15 

Percentage 1.38% 14.86% 10.46% 33.69% 9.30% 25.73% 4.58% 100.00% 

2018 Calls 3,101 54,363 37,769 116,819 33,252 54,661 14,387 314,352 

Percentage 0.99% 17.29% 12.01% 37.16% 10.58% 17.39% 4.58% 100.00% 

As can be seen, given the diversity of size between the seven Cities, all of the formula tests come 
out close to each other. If a JPA were to be feasible, the Cities could likely agree on one formula 
or a blend of two formulas to use for cost sharing.  

Page 13707/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 3—Police JPA Fiscal Analysis page 20 

Other than office space, start-up costs could be shared using the same formula as annual operations. 
Capital building construction costs would be the responsibility of each different city based on their 
local options.  

Another, harder-to-estimate cost at this feasibility point is 9-1-1 dispatch, radio, and mobile data 
systems. The Cities’ police JPA needs to have dispatching and radio/data services over a large 
geography. The previous cost estimate includes the needed personnel, operating expense, and 
capital expense for dispatch and technical services. The Sheriff’s Department might consider a 
contract with the JPA for these services, offering the best regional cost efficiencies.  

Not yet fully calculated in the start-up costs is the practical difficulty in recruiting, hiring, on-
boarding, and training a 669-person workforce to new agency standards. This would require the 
legal establishment of the JPA as an employer, along with enough of a command and human 
resources staff to set up the agency and hire the employees. In the first two years, no services 
would likely be provided at all to the Cities, so all these costs are in addition to the current County 
Sheriff’s Department contract amounts. It is only by year three that phased-in conversion of 
services city by city could commence, and this will likely take two to three years depending on the 
rate of hiring. 

3.4 NEW SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT COST CONTROL MEASURES 

After the change of Sheriffs in early 2019, Sheriff Chad Bianco formed a Research and 
Development Unit and tasked them to, among other priorities, find cost efficiencies and deeply 
review the contract Cities’ cost model. The Unit’s early efforts focused on patrol operations as that 
is the Department’s largest personnel expense and customer area. The Unit began developing 
staffing plans based on workload measures. As the Unit looked at staffing for cost efficiencies, it 
identified three variables: 

◆ Reduce or redistribute staffing 

◆ Reduce call volume 

◆ Reduce time spent on calls. 

The research of these variables drove several key findings for workload distribution: 

◆ CSOs are currently being underutilized on patrol 

➢ CSOs handle only 4 to 10 percent of calls 

➢ CSOs are capable of handling an average of 25 percent of calls 

◆ The cost difference between Patrol Deputies and CSOs is significant: 

➢ The Patrol Deputy cost per hour rate is $188.95 

Page 13807/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 3—Police JPA Fiscal Analysis page 21 

➢ The CSO cost per hour rate is $61.64 

➢ The potential Department-wide annual cost savings is $226,612. 

Regarding time spent by Deputies on calls for service to gain efficiencies (cost per hour deployed), 
the Unit evaluated the options of: 

◆ No response – handling issues with a referral to another better suited type of 
assistance 

◆ Alternate reporting methods – including electronic, phone in, etc. 

◆ Hybrid online reporting – incorporating elements of CSO assistance 

◆ Online reporting – largely by the affected party 

◆ Auto-populating report forms – easing repetitive entry by the Deputies on standard 
issues and reducing report writing time. 

Citygate observes that all of these elements to gain efficiencies in per-hour deployment are best 
practices and that appropriately using parts or all of them is the best way to avoid unnecessary over 
deployment (cost) for police services. 

Page 13907/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Cities of Canyon Lake, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar 

Police Services JPA Feasibility Assessment 

Section 4—Recommendation page 22 

SECTION 4—RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the current Sheriff’s Department Administration’s willingness to research and develop 
cost-control initiatives, and given this preliminary JPA cost estimation is substantially higher than 
the current contract amounts, Citygate recommends the Cities pursue the Sheriff’s Department’s 
cost-controlling initiatives in-lieu of a JPA.  

Additionally, over the next year, the Cities should request that the Sheriff’s Department conduct 
an incident and community policing workload demand-based staffing study to further tailor their 
costs to the needs of each city. This study would effectively be a Policing Master Plan per city to 
include staffing levels, innovation, community engagement, oversight, and social justice/equity 
structures. 

Page 14007/07/2021 City Council Agenda



8

Page 14107/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 14207/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 14307/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 14407/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 14507/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 14607/07/2021 City Council Agenda



Page 14707/07/2021 City Council Agenda


	07/07/2021 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
	ITEM 2 - RESOLUTION NO. 2021-33 CLAIMS & DEMANDS
	ITEM 3 - MINUTES
	ITEM 4 - AGREEMENT LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES
	ITEM 5 - DISCUSSION OF CANNABIS
	ITEM 6 - ORDINANCE NO. 208 & 209 - EMS SUBSCRIPTION PROGRAM
	ITEM 7 - RESOLUTION NO. 2021-34 BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - POLICE JPA STUDY
	ITEM 8 - LOCC DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATE



